
From: Lee, Aaron
To: Dontireddy, Raj Reddy
Cc: Cahill, Declan; Miller, Harris E
Subject: [EXT] RE: Automatic Fuel Swap Data for 2022
Date: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 10:11:16 AM
Attachments: image001.png

7A Winter 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report - Oct.docx
7B Winter 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report - Oct.docx
7A Winter 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report - Dec.docx
7B Winter 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report - Dec.docx
7A Summer 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report.docx
7B Summer 2022 NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report.docx

*** EXTERNAL EMAIL***
Do not click on links, open attachments, or provide credentials unless

you are certain of the sender’s identity!
Hi Raj,
 
Attached are the Automatic Fuel Swap tests performed in 2022. There were no unsuccessful tests.
 

Aaron Lee
Associate Energy Trading Analyst, Energy Resource Management
 
New York Power Authority
123 Main Street
White Plains, New York 10601
(914) 529-1990 | aaron.lee@nypa.gov
www.nypa.gov
 
 

From: Dontireddy, Raj Reddy <RDontireddy@nyiso.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 8:43 AM
To: Lee, Aaron <Aaron.Lee@nypa.gov>
Cc: Cahill, Declan <DCahill@nyiso.com>; Miller, Harris E <HMiller@nyiso.com>
Subject: RE: Automatic Fuel Swap Data for 2022
 
Aaron,
 
Following up to see if you get a chance to look into this request.
 
Thanks,
Raj
 

From: Dontireddy, Raj Reddy 
Sent: Thursday, May 4, 2023 1:30 PM
To: Lee, Aaron <Aaron.Lee@nypa.gov>

mailto:Aaron.Lee@nypa.gov
mailto:RDontireddy@nyiso.com
mailto:DCahill@nyiso.com
mailto:HMiller@nyiso.com
mailto:aaron.lee@nypa.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.nypa.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7CRDontireddy%40nyiso.com%7C13fee3e977a84ed5aac008db5096dc6f%7C7658602af7b94209bc62d2bfc30dea0d%7C0%7C0%7C638192382755268745%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=f68KZg13X%2BPDb2xx35WYqEpDFrO1n7KIfem%2BY6tc6QI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Aaron.Lee@nypa.gov

New York ISO

Independent System Operator




		NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report



		



		Generator Owner

			NYPA



		Unit Name

			Astoria 500 MW



		Unit Number

		7A☒

		7B☐



		NYISO MIS PTID

		323568☒

		323569☐



		NYISO Capability Period

		Summer☐

		Winter☒



		Year

		2022

		



		



		AUTOMATIC FUEL SWAP TEST



		Test Initiation

		(Mark One below with an X)



		

		☐ Actual Loss of Gas Pressure



		

		☒ Simulated Loss of Gas Pressure



		

		



		Test Result:

		Pass☒		Fail☐



		

		



		Test Date:

		October 14, 2022



		Start Time:

		1919 hours



		End Time:

		1953 hours



		

		



		Attachments:

		(Yes or No)



		

		HMI Fuel Screen Shot before Swap [footnoteRef:1] [1:  Will not be available on unplanned transfer.] 


		Yes☒		No☐



		

		HMI Fuel Screen Shot after Swap

		Yes☒		No☐



		

		PI Data

		Yes☒		No☐



		

		



		COMMENTS:

		



		

		










		10/14/2022

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Unit 7A Fuel Swap

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		





		 

		 

		7A Gaseous Fuel

		 

		7A Liquid Fuel

		 

		 

		 



		Date/Time

		7A Net MW

		Valve Position

		Flow

		Valve Position

		Flow

		7A On Gas?

		7A On oil?



		 

		MW

		%

		pps

		%

		 

		 

		 



		GAS-TO-OIL

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		10/14/2022 19:19

		198

		51

		18

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:20

		198

		50

		17

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:21

		194

		49

		17

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:22

		188

		47

		17

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:23

		181

		46

		16

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:24

		172

		44

		16

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:25

		160

		43

		15

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:26

		151

		42

		14

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:27

		140

		41

		14

		4

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:28

		142

		26

		7

		23

		8

		Yes

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:29

		132

		0

		0

		46

		16

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:30

		131

		0

		0

		48

		17

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:31

		133

		0

		0

		48

		17

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:32

		135

		0

		0

		48

		17

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:33

		136

		0

		0

		48

		16

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:34

		137

		0

		0

		47

		16

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		10/14/2022 19:40

		69

		0

		0

		27

		9

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:41

		52

		0

		0

		22

		7

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:42

		48

		0

		0

		21

		7

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:43

		39

		0

		0

		19

		6

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:44

		34

		18

		3

		11

		4

		Yes

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 19:45

		31

		28

		6

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:46

		30

		27

		7

		5

		2

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:47

		6

		26

		7

		5

		2

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:48

		6

		26

		7

		4

		2

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:49

		1

		25

		6

		4

		2

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:50

		0

		23

		5

		4

		2

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:51

		0

		13

		1

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:52

		0

		12

		1

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 19:53

		0

		10

		0

		0

		0

		Yes

		 








		NYISO Automatic Fuel Transfer Verification Report



		



		Generator Owner

			NYPA



		Unit Name

			Astoria 500 MW



		Unit Number

		7A☐

		7B☒



		NYISO MIS PTID

		323568☐

		323569☒



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

		1515 hours



		End Time:

		1555 hours



		

		



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

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Unit 7B Fuel Swap

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		





		 

		 

		7B Gaseous Fuel

		 

		7B Liquid Fuel

		 

		 

		 



		Date/Time

		7B Net MW

		Valve Position

		Flow

		Valve Position

		Flow

		7B On Gas?

		7B On oil?



		 

		MW

		%

		pps

		%

		 

		 

		 



		GAS-TO-OIL

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		10/14/2022 15:15

		348

		42

		16

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:16

		351

		43

		16

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:17

		355

		43

		16

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:18

		355

		43

		16

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:19

		354

		43

		16

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:20

		349

		41

		15

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:21

		345

		40

		15

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:22

		339

		38

		14

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:23

		335

		37

		14

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:24

		328

		36

		13

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:25

		286

		0

		1

		31

		12

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:26

		284

		0

		1

		31

		11

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:27

		287

		0

		1

		33

		12

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:28

		292

		0

		1

		35

		13

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:29

		302

		0

		1

		39

		14

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:30

		310

		0

		1

		42

		15

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:31

		319

		0

		1

		46

		15

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:32

		316

		0

		1

		45

		15

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:33

		307

		0

		1

		42

		14

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:34

		297

		0

		1

		38

		13

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		10/14/2022 15:43

		224

		0

		1

		29

		10

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:44

		225

		0

		1

		29

		10

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:45

		220

		0

		1

		27

		9

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:46

		210

		0

		1

		24

		8

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:47

		197

		0

		1

		20

		7

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:48

		195

		0

		1

		20

		6

		 

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:49

		196

		10

		1

		18

		6

		Yes

		Yes 



		10/14/2022 15:50

		196

		22

		5

		3

		1

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:51

		195

		23

		6

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:52

		195

		21

		5

		3

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:53

		196

		17

		4

		2

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:54

		202

		13

		2

		0

		0

		Yes

		 



		10/14/2022 15:55

		209

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

		Dec 23, 2022



		Start Time:

		0900 hours



		End Time:

		1200 hours



		

		



		Attachments:

		(Yes or No)



		

		HMI Fuel Screen Shot before Swap [footnoteRef:1] [1:  Will not be available on unplanned transfer.] 


		Yes☐		No☒



		

		HMI Fuel Screen Shot after Swap

		Yes☐		No☒



		

		PI Data

		Yes☒		No☐



		

		



		COMMENTS:

		



		

		










		NYPA ZELTMANN POWER PROJECT

		

		

		



		Unit 7A Fuel Swap

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		 

		 

		7A Gaseous Fuel

		 

		7A Liquid Fuel

		 

		 

		 



		Date/Time

		7A Net MW

		Valve Position

		Flow

		Valve Position

		Flow

		7A On Gas?

		7A On oil?



		 

		MW

		%

		pps

		%

		 

		 

		 



		12/23/2022

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		GAS-TO-OIL

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:01:00

		27.06

		26.11

		7.63

		0.00

		1.09

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:02:00

		30.52

		26.91

		7.90

		0.00

		1.08

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:03:00

		31.01

		26.70

		7.68

		0.00

		1.07

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:04:00

		30.96

		26.49

		7.47

		0.00

		1.06

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:05:00

		30.88

		26.28

		7.26

		0.00

		1.06

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:06:00

		32.43

		22.97

		6.50

		4.12

		1.98

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 09:07:00

		28.95

		0.93

		0.32

		24.40

		8.60

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:08:00

		32.62

		0.07

		0.09

		27.01

		9.45

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:09:00

		38.81

		0.07

		0.09

		28.63

		10.00

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:10:00

		40.71

		0.08

		0.09

		29.04

		10.39

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:11:00

		40.80

		0.08

		0.09

		29.20

		10.43

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:12:00

		40.56

		0.08

		0.09

		29.36

		10.46

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:13:00

		40.40

		0.08

		0.09

		29.53

		10.50

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:14:00

		40.18

		0.08

		0.08

		29.69

		10.53

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:15:00

		40.23

		0.09

		0.08

		29.85

		10.56

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:16:00

		40.50

		0.09

		0.08

		30.01

		10.59

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:17:00

		39.93

		0.09

		0.08

		30.17

		10.63

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:18:00

		41.48

		0.09

		0.08

		30.33

		10.66

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:19:00

		47.23

		0.09

		0.08

		31.13

		10.70

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 09:20:00

		50.75

		0.10

		0.08

		32.03

		10.76

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		12/29/2022

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:42:00

		82.25

		0.95

		0.06

		43.62

		15.01

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:43:00

		68.04

		0.97

		0.05

		38.34

		13.26

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:44:00

		52.31

		0.99

		0.04

		33.23

		11.51

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:45:00

		37.12

		1.01

		0.03

		28.17

		9.76

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:46:00

		21.89

		1.03

		0.02

		23.11

		8.01

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:47:00

		9.55

		1.05

		0.01

		19.22

		6.64

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:48:00

		8.32

		1.07

		0.01

		18.41

		6.17

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:49:00

		7.65

		1.81

		0.46

		16.98

		5.60

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 12:50:00

		10.17

		13.51

		4.19

		4.79

		1.71

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:51:00

		10.87

		20.27

		6.51

		0.48

		0.18

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:52:00

		23.13

		24.88

		7.81

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:53:00

		38.62

		29.42

		9.12

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:54:00

		51.61

		34.00

		10.42

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:55:00

		66.93

		38.81

		11.73

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:56:00

		82.56

		43.62

		13.03

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:57:00

		98.35

		48.43

		14.34

		0.48

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:58:00

		113.17

		52.55

		15.45

		0.47

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 12:59:00

		121.41

		54.15

		15.61

		0.47

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:00:00

		121.90

		54.19

		15.66

		0.47

		1.17

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:01:00

		121.94

		54.23

		15.70

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

		1500 hours



		End Time:

		2000 hours



		

		



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

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		23-Dec-22 15:00:00

		16.95

		23.07

		6.03

		0.00

		1.09

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 15:01:00

		22.67

		24.94

		6.57

		0.00

		0.88

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 15:02:00

		28.04

		26.63

		7.12

		0.00

		0.68

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 15:03:00

		30.27

		26.59

		7.66

		0.00

		0.47

		Yes

		 



		23-Dec-22 15:04:00

		31.40

		14.40

		4.81

		12.49

		4.56

		Yes

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:05:00

		30.22

		0.01

		0.61

		26.04

		9.35

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:06:00

		35.75

		0.01

		0.61

		27.68

		9.92

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:07:00

		41.07

		0.01

		0.61

		29.31

		10.49

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:08:00

		46.30

		0.01

		0.61

		30.94

		11.01

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:09:00

		49.94

		0.01

		0.61

		31.67

		11.13

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:10:00

		50.37

		0.01

		0.60

		31.71

		11.15

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:11:00

		50.15

		0.01

		0.60

		31.74

		11.18

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:12:00

		49.93

		0.01

		0.60

		31.77

		11.20

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:13:00

		50.09

		0.01

		0.60

		31.80

		11.23

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:14:00

		50.34

		0.01

		0.60

		31.83

		11.26

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:15:00

		50.59

		0.01

		0.60

		31.86

		11.28

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:16:00

		50.37

		0.01

		0.60

		31.89

		11.31

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:17:00

		50.04

		0.01

		0.59

		31.92

		11.33

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:18:00

		49.99

		0.01

		0.59

		31.95

		11.36

		 

		Yes 



		23-Dec-22 15:19:00

		50.20

		0.01

		0.59

		31.98

		11.38

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		12/29/2022

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:03:00

		64.27

		0.98

		0.79

		37.48

		13.16

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:04:00

		47.75

		0.99

		0.77

		32.09

		11.29

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:05:00

		31.76

		1.01

		0.75

		26.69

		9.41

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:06:00

		16.45

		1.02

		0.73

		21.60

		7.54

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:07:00

		6.29

		1.03

		0.71

		18.33

		6.15

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:08:00

		6.04

		1.05

		0.69

		17.98

		5.95

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:09:00

		6.29

		1.06

		0.67

		17.79

		5.82

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:10:00

		8.79

		3.20

		1.66

		15.58

		5.19

		 

		Yes 



		29-Dec-22 13:11:00

		10.31

		15.50

		4.71

		2.59

		0.89

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:12:00

		8.93

		18.76

		5.96

		0.00

		0.54

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:13:00

		9.37

		19.40

		6.27

		0.00

		1.46

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:14:00

		9.81

		20.03

		6.59

		0.00

		1.46

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:15:00

		10.31

		20.67

		6.90

		0.00

		1.46

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:16:00

		18.41

		22.99

		7.27

		0.00

		1.46

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:17:00

		32.69

		27.97

		8.41

		0.00

		1.46

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:18:00

		47.71

		32.99

		9.82

		0.00

		1.45

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:19:00

		62.91

		37.96

		11.24

		0.00

		1.45

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:20:00

		76.67

		42.14

		12.65

		0.00

		1.45

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:21:00

		91.02

		46.07

		14.02

		0.00

		1.45

		Yes

		 



		29-Dec-22 13:22:00

		106.01

		50.00

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

		Summer☒

		Winter☐



		Year

		2022

		



		



		AUTOMATIC FUEL SWAP TEST



		Test Initiation

		(Mark One below with an X)



		

		☒ Actual Loss of Gas Pressure



		

		☐ Simulated Loss of Gas Pressure



		

		



		Test Result:

		Pass☒		Fail☐



		

		



		Test Date:

		May 31, 2022



		Start Time:

		1350 hours



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

		



		

		










		5/31/2022

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Unit 7A Fuel Swap

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		 

		 

		7A Gaseous Fuel

		 

		7A Liquid Fuel

		 

		 

		 



		Date/Time

		7A Net MW

		Valve Position

		Flow

		Valve Position

		Flow

		7A On Gas?

		7A On oil?



		 

		MW

		%

		pps

		%

		 

		 

		 



		GAS-TO-OIL

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		31-May-22 13:50:00

		162.47

		66.43

		0.00

		18.97

		0.41

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:51:00

		162.45

		66.46

		0.00

		18.79

		0.41

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:52:00

		162.42

		66.49

		0.00

		18.44

		0.40

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:53:00

		162.40

		66.52

		0.00

		17.79

		0.40

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:54:00

		162.38

		66.55

		0.00

		17.12

		0.40

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:55:00

		162.36

		66.58

		0.00

		16.45

		0.39

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:56:00

		162.33

		66.61

		0.00

		15.79

		0.39

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:57:00

		162.20

		66.75

		0.00

		15.12

		0.39

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:58:00

		143.68

		61.53

		0.00

		14.46

		0.39

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:59:00

		112.54

		2.05

		0.00

		13.79

		0.38

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 14:00:00

		102.75

		0.00

		0.52

		13.12

		0.55

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 14:01:00

		101.25

		0.01

		34.03

		3.96

		12.15

		Yes

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:02:00

		100.64

		0.01

		46.12

		0.69

		16.11

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:03:00

		102.20

		0.01

		48.59

		0.69

		16.79

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:04:00

		107.50

		0.01

		51.05

		0.69

		17.47

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:05:00

		112.12

		0.01

		53.50

		0.69

		18.15

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:06:00

		117.48

		0.02

		55.40

		0.69

		18.83

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:07:00

		123.12

		0.02

		57.07

		0.69

		19.51

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:08:00

		128.37

		0.02

		58.73

		0.69

		20.19

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:09:00

		131.85

		0.02

		60.40

		0.69

		20.87

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		31-May-22 20:10:00

		87.83

		0.82

		0.73

		45.74

		15.88

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:11:00

		88.01

		0.82

		0.74

		45.74

		15.87

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:12:00

		88.47

		0.82

		0.74

		45.74

		15.86

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:13:00

		88.27

		0.82

		0.74

		45.73

		15.85

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:14:00

		88.13

		0.83

		0.74

		45.73

		15.84

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:15:00

		87.66

		0.83

		0.74

		45.73

		15.83

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:16:00

		87.40

		0.83

		0.74

		45.73

		15.82

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:17:00

		87.35

		0.83

		0.74

		45.73

		15.81

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:18:00

		87.34

		0.83

		0.74

		45.73

		15.79

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:19:00

		87.27

		0.84

		0.74

		45.73

		15.78

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:20:00

		79.57

		0.84

		0.74

		43.41

		15.03

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:21:00

		65.64

		0.84

		0.74

		38.06

		13.10

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:22:00

		50.65

		0.84

		0.74

		32.69

		11.16

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:23:00

		34.60

		0.84

		0.74

		27.29

		9.21

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:24:00

		19.57

		0.85

		0.79

		22.33

		7.54

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:25:00

		12.06

		0.85

		0.71

		20.14

		6.66

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:26:00

		8.89

		0.85

		0.75

		18.45

		5.83

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:27:00

		8.30

		3.66

		1.84

		14.29

		4.71

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:28:00

		11.11

		16.97

		4.58

		1.89

		0.85

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:29:00

		22.44

		24.05

		7.28

		0.15

		0.48

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:30:00

		38.84

		29.69

		8.88

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:31:00

		53.96

		34.23

		10.46

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:32:00

		68.13

		38.78

		11.99

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:33:00

		83.25

		43.32

		13.32

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:34:00

		97.95

		47.52

		14.36

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:35:00

		94.88

		46.06

		14.26

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:36:00

		89.81

		45.40

		14.11

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:37:00

		105.56

		49.61

		15.02

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:38:00

		117.84

		53.12

		16.07

		0.14

		1.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:39:00

		120.04

		53.37

		16.17

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

		164.88

		66.56

		19.24

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:51:00

		164.89

		66.55

		19.24

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:52:00

		164.91

		66.55

		19.23

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:53:00

		164.92

		66.54

		19.23

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:54:00

		164.94

		66.53

		19.22

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:55:00

		164.95

		66.52

		19.22

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:56:00

		164.97

		66.79

		19.21

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:57:00

		164.88

		67.28

		19.14

		0.00

		0.94

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 13:58:00

		147.18

		63.97

		16.08

		6.06

		2.70

		Yes

		Yes 



		31-May-22 13:59:00

		125.02

		3.52

		2.30

		50.58

		18.27

		Yes

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:00:00

		116.73

		0.16

		0.98

		53.23

		19.19

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:01:00

		114.81

		0.16

		0.98

		53.42

		19.18

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:02:00

		112.86

		0.16

		0.98

		53.42

		19.16

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:03:00

		111.27

		0.16

		0.98

		53.17

		19.15

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:04:00

		114.56

		0.16

		0.98

		53.80

		19.13

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:05:00

		119.43

		0.16

		0.98

		55.69

		19.12

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:06:00

		124.78

		0.16

		0.98

		57.58

		20.32

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:07:00

		130.64

		0.17

		0.98

		59.47

		20.64

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:08:00

		135.67

		0.17

		0.98

		61.36

		20.95

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 14:09:00

		138.28

		0.17

		0.98

		61.56

		21.25

		 

		Yes 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		OIL-TO-GAS

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		31-May-22 20:35:00

		120.77

		0.73

		0.68

		55.28

		19.11

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:36:00

		120.97

		0.73

		0.68

		55.23

		19.06

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:37:00

		120.95

		0.73

		0.68

		55.17

		19.01

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:38:00

		120.07

		0.73

		0.68

		55.11

		18.96

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:39:00

		111.04

		0.73

		0.68

		53.06

		18.20

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:40:00

		94.92

		0.73

		0.68

		48.67

		16.53

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:41:00

		80.46

		0.73

		0.67

		43.84

		14.85

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:42:00

		65.90

		0.74

		0.67

		38.69

		13.17

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:43:00

		51.30

		0.74

		0.67

		33.54

		11.49

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:44:00

		35.60

		0.74

		0.67

		28.39

		9.81

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:45:00

		20.66

		0.74

		0.69

		23.25

		8.13

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:46:00

		9.39

		0.74

		0.51

		19.11

		6.52

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:47:00

		7.83

		1.44

		1.02

		16.94

		5.38

		 

		Yes 



		31-May-22 20:48:00

		10.95

		14.06

		3.78

		5.03

		1.83

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:49:00

		18.49

		21.93

		6.79

		0.19

		0.09

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:50:00

		33.60

		27.21

		8.50

		0.19

		0.09

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:51:00

		48.77

		32.46

		10.12

		0.19

		0.10

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:52:00

		63.58

		37.09

		11.44

		0.18

		0.10

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:53:00

		78.44

		41.47

		12.61

		0.18

		0.10

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:54:00

		93.37

		45.85

		13.78

		0.18

		0.10

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:55:00

		108.71

		49.96

		14.94

		0.18

		0.10

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:56:00

		119.03

		51.92

		15.75

		0.18

		0.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:57:00

		112.00

		49.76

		15.73

		0.18

		0.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:58:00

		103.25

		47.88

		15.69

		0.18

		0.11

		Yes

		 



		31-May-22 20:59:00

		103.32

		48.03

		15.65

		0.18

		0.11

		Yes

		 











Cc: Cahill, Declan <DCahill@nyiso.com>; Miller, Harris E <HMiller@nyiso.com>
Subject: Automatic Fuel Swap Data for 2022
 
Aaron,
 
Robert Golen is no longer with NYISO and I took over the responsibility as Manager, Operations
Engineering. Can you please share certification and data of Automatic Fuel Swapping testing
performed in 2022 and if any test were unsuccessful, what remedial actions were taken to resolve
the failure. Please include Declan, Harris (cc’ed) and me in the emails going forward.
 
 
Thanks,
 

Raj Dontireddy | LinkedIn
Manager, Operations Engineering
10 Krey Boulevard, Rensselaer, NY 12144
Ph: 518-356-7362 | www.nyiso.com

Delivering the grid of the future. Blog | Podcast | Twitter | 2040 Grid
 
The information in this email is confidential and maybe legally privileged against disclosure other
than to the intended recipient. It is intended solely for the addressee. Access to this email by anyone
else is unauthorized. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or
any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. Please
immediately delete this message and inform the sender of this error.
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